
MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
CITY OF NEW PORT RICHEY

NEW PORT RICHEY CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS
5919 MAIN STREET, NEW PORT RICHEY, FLORIDA

January 17, 2023
7:00 PM

 

ORDER OF
BUSINESS

1. Call to Order – Roll Call

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Rob Marlowe at 7:00 p.m. Those in attendance were
Deputy Mayor Mike Peters, Councilman Peter Altman, Councilman Matt Murphy and Councilwoman
Kelly Mothershead. 
 
Also in attendance were City Manager Debbie L. Manns, City Attorney Timothy Driscoll, City Clerk
Judy Meyers, Police Chief Kim Bogart, Finance Director Crystal Dunn, Fire Chief Chris Fitch,
Public Works Director Robert Rivera, Community and Development Director Dale Hall, Library
Director Andi Figart, and Technology and Innovations Director Robert Greene.

2 Pledge of Allegiance

3 Moment of Silence

4 Approval of January 3, 2023 Regular Meeting and January 5, 2023 Work Session Minutes

Motion was made to approve the minutes as presented.
 
Motion made by Matt Murphy and seconded by Kelly Mothershead.  The Motion Passed.  5-0.  Ayes:
Altman, Marlowe, Mothershead, Murphy, Peters   

5 Proclamation - Arbor Day

Environmental Committee Chairman Dell deChant accepted the parchment from Mayor Marlowe. 

6 Vox Pop for Items Not Listed on the Agenda or Listed on Consent Agenda

Mayor Marlowe opened the floor for public comment. The following people came forward to speak:  
 

Skip Geiger, 5017 Dory Dr., NPR spoke regarding golf carts crossing US19.  City Attorney
Driscoll explained the rules set forth by FDOT. City Manager Manns provided the contact
information for District 7. 



Paul Black, 5844 Madison St., NPR spoke regarding the intersection of Main St. and Old
Main St. 
Judith Allen, 5940 Grand Blvd., NPR, spoke regarding audits, budgets and grants. 
Kimberly Cox, 7336 Ashmore Dr., NPR, spoke regarding Chief Bogart and the police
department under his tenure. 
Steve Schurdell, 13825 U.S. 19, Hudson thanked Council for the their participation in the
MLK Day event this past weekend. 
Dick Maxwell, 4415 Spring Lake Ct., NPR spoke regarding freedom of speech and freedom of
religion. 
Eugene Scott, 10803 Hale St., Port Richey thanked the City, City Manager Manns, Mayor
Marlowe and Deputy Mayor Peters for their hard work for the MLK Day event this past
weekend. 
Stephen Blanchard, 5100 Providence Cir., NPR spoke regarding golf carts crossing US 19.
Shinikki Whiting, 5755 Indiana Ave., NPR, spoke regarding the MLK Day event this past
weekend. She encouraged hosting a parade in the downtown in the future.
Ashley Adamiak, 6819 Lassen Ave., NPR spoke regarding separation of church and state. 

 
With no one else coming forward for public comment, Mayor Marlowe closed Vox Pop.

a Speakers must identify themselves prior to speaking by stating their name and full address for the
record. Speakers shall address the City Council as a whole and refrain from addressing individual
members of the City Council or the City staff. Speakers shall afford the utmost courtesy to the City
Council, to City employees, and to the public, and shall refrain at all times, from rude and derogatory
remarks, reflections as to integrity, abusive comments, and statements as to motives and personalities.

7 Consent Agenda

Motion was made to accept the Consent Agenda.
 
Motion made by Matt Murphy and seconded by Mike Peters.  The Motion Passed.  5-0.  Ayes:
Altman, Marlowe, Mothershead, Murphy, Peters   

a Budget Amendment

b Purchases/Payments for City Council Approval

8 Business Items

a Request for Funding for Dino's & Dragons Exhibit

City Manager Manns introduced the item to Council. She stated that the purpose of this agenda item
was to approve financial support in the amount of $10,000 for the MAPS Dino and Dragons Exhibit
being hosted at the Harry Schwettman Education Center. City Manager Manns stated the original
request was that $5,000 would go towards discounted tickets and the remaining $5,000 would go
towards the cost of electric. She stated that she has since been approached by Rich Melton who
suggested distributing 400 free tickets to the 4th and 5th grade students at Richey Elementary and
Marlowe Elementary Schools. In addition, Mr. Melton suggested issuing a $5 off ticket for a parent
that accompanies a child bearing a free ticket. Upon opening the floor to public comment, the
following people came forward to speak:
 

Bob Langford, 5603 Wyoming Ave., NPR spoke regarding MAPS filings with the IRS. He also
spoke regarding MAPS expenses and assets. 
Kimberly Cox, 7336 Ashmore Dr., NPR spoke in support of the tickets for 4th and 5th
graders. 
Rich Melton, 5848 Central Ave., NPR came forward and stated he is the current treasurer and
would be happy to sit down with Council and go over the records.
Bertell Butler, 5335 Bellview Ave., NPR came forward to speak regarding nonprofit requests



for the public to see. 
Ann Russo James, 5603 Wyoming Ave., NPR came forward to state that they are not against
teaching the children it is with the group themselves. 
Marlowe Jones, 6141 Pine Hill Rd., Port Richey came forward to suggest support in the
amount of $20k and extend the offer to Chasco Elementary and Middle Schools. 
Chopper Davis, 6110 Florida Ave., NPR came forward to suggest opening it up to more 4th and
5th graders in addition to the electric bill. 

 
With no one else coming forward Mayor Marlowe returned the floor to Council. Motion was made to
approve the item with 400 free tickets to the 4th and 5th grade students at Richey Elementary and
Marlowe Elementary Schools and $5 off tickets for parents that accompany a child bearing a free
ticket.  
 
Motion made by Pete Altman and seconded by Kelly Mothershead.  The Motion Passed.  5-0.  Ayes:
Altman, Marlowe, Mothershead, Murphy, Peters   

b Utility Service Agreement – Two Guys Holding Co.

City Manager Manns introduced Public Works Director Robert Rivera who presented the item to
Council. He stated that the purpose of this agenda item was to approve a Utility Service
Agreement between the City and Two Guys Holding Corporation. Mr. Rivera stated that the site is
located at 8300 Massachusetts Avenue, in unincorporated Pasco County outside the City’s corporate
limits and is within the City’s utility service area. The agreement requires the Developer to construct
the potable water utility system in accordance with the City’s Utility Standards prior to the City’s
acceptance of ownership. Mr. Rivera stated there was no budget impact. Upon opening the floor to
public comment, no one came forward therefore Mayor Marlowe  returned the floor to Council.
Motion was made to approve the item as presented.  
 
Motion made by Pete Altman and seconded by Matt Murphy.  The Motion Passed.  5-0.  Ayes: Altman,
Marlowe, Mothershead, Murphy, Peters   

c 2023 RFP 23-001 – Fleet Maintenance and Utility Purchasing Warehouse Project Construction
Management Services Award

City Manager Manns introduced Public Works Director Robert Rivera who presented the item to
Council. He stated that the purpose of this agenda item was to award RFP 23-001 to Hennessy
Construction Services Corporation for construction management services for the construction of the
proposed Fleet Maintenance and Utility Purchasing Warehouse Project in the amount not to exceed
$473,782. He stated the existing facility located at 6420 Pine Hill Road was constructed in 1973 and
housed the Public Works Department. This included administrative offices and operation centers for
water and sewer utilities, streets and right-of-way maintenance, stormwater utility, construction
management, fleet maintenance, utility and automotive purchasing and inventory storage until 2009.
The building and site houses heavy maintenance equipment, ancillary equipment, construction
materials, and police seizure vehicles. Plans and specifications for the construction of the proposed
structure were prepared by Williams Architects (WA). Mr. Rivera stated that after a review by City
staff and WA, it was determined that the cause of the bid escalation was due to the Covid 19 virus
pandemic and the material supply chain delays. The recommendation from WA to staff was to wait
until the pandemic concluded and the material supply chain delays corrected itself. In addition, WA
recommended that a construction management firm be incorporated into the process and oversee the
project. Four construction management firms submitted RFPs. One firm was disqualified due to an
invalid RFP submission. Criteria was based on bid amount, team and assigned personnel qualification,
and experience. Firm references, previous similar work completed, project approach, and technical
compliance with the RFQ requirements. Hennessy Construction was ranked number one out of the
three firms. Further negotiations with Hennessy resulted in the reduction of their original bid amount
of $601,614 to $473,782. Staff is confident that the firm has the expertise to deliver a product that
meets and or exceeds the demands and standards set by City Council and staff. Upon opening the floor
to public comment, no one came forward therefore Mayor Marlowe returned the floor to Council.
Motion was made to approve the item as presented.  



 
Motion made by Mike Peters and seconded by Matt Murphy.  The Motion Passed.  5-0.  Ayes: Altman,
Marlowe, Mothershead, Murphy, Peters   

d Dismissal of Keysource Medical, Inc. from the National Opioid Litigation

City Manager Manns introduced the item to Council. She stated that the purpose of this agenda item
was to authorize the City Manager to execute a dismissal order in regard to National Prescription
Drug Litigation to Keysource Medical, Inc. from the Short Form for Supplementing Complaint and
Amending Defendants and Jury Demand. She stated that Keysource Medical, Inc (KMI) is a second-
tier defendant in the National Prescription Drug Litigation.  She stated that the City has recently been
advised by legal counsel of a recommendation to voluntarily dismiss Keysource Medical from the
lawsuit based on their insolvency.  KMI has been determined by counsel representing the city to be (a)
no longer in business; (b) having dissolved its corporate form; (c) having no assets; and (d) having no
insurance coverage.  Based on these facts it is additionally recommended that the case be dismissed,
without prejudice, so that if representations made were determined to be untrue, the City would have a
right to re-file the case. Upon opening the floor to public comment, no one came forward therefore
Mayor Marlowe returned the floor to Council. Motion was made to approve the item as presented.  
 
Motion made by Pete Altman and seconded by Mike Peters.  The Motion Passed.  5-0.  Ayes: Altman,
Marlowe, Mothershead, Murphy, Peters   

9 Communications

Mayor Marlowe stated he attended the Pasco County Legislative Delegation meeting and presented
funding requests and legislative issues. He spoke regarding the future use of Schwettman Education
Center. He stated having a museum in that location would be an attraction. Mayor Marlowe stated the
WPHS sold coffee and hot cocoa during the chilly MLK Day event. He stated the events on Monday
were great as well. Mayor Marlowe spoke regarding the intersection at Main St. and Old Main St. He
stated Mr. Blanchard's comments during Vox Pop is exactly what needs to be relayed to District 7. He
stated we need to make it safe for them to cross US 19. He stated there is a CDBG workshop this
Friday. City Manager Manns stated Ms. Allen was invited as well as others on the waiting list.
Councilman Murphy stated there are new members to the MPO Board. He stated there was a
discussion on microtransit. He stated the discussion regarding golf carts and scooters is ongoing.
Councilman Altman spoke regarding budget amendments and financial statements. He stated there has
been transition and technology modifications. He stated Penny for Pasco was for new things to
enhance our community, and ARPA was used for businesses. He stated the CRA is made and designed
to eliminate blight in order to increase the tax base. Councilman Altman stated that it is disturbing
when there is a lack of knowledge from the public. He stated he has asked to have conversations about
priorities. He stated the City has done well to support initiatives that have been brought forward. He
then spoke regarding FDOT funding. Deputy Mayor Peters stated the MLK Day event was good and
the crowd was big. He is looking forward to a larger event next. He stated that he has spoken to county
commissioners regarding golf cart crossings and has also spoken to legislators about it. He then
explained the difference between LSV and golf carts. Deputy Mayor Peters then spoke about the
intersection at Main St. and Old Main St. Deputy Mayor Peters then spoke regarding Chief Bogart
and his accomplishments with the city over the last ten years. He stated the Schwettman property is a
key property in the city. He stated the old hospital property area redevelopment will help increase our
tax base. Councilwoman Mothershead stated everyone she talked to at the MLK Day event said they
had a great time. She stated there should have been more people with coffee and hot chocolate. She
would like to see it expanded next year and improve the event with a parade. She stated we have to
figure out a safe way to cross US19 in golf carts. She stated the issue is not just a city issue but spans
up the entire state. She is excited about the grant workshop on Friday. City Manager Manns stated that
Council received the financial report and the agenda packet is released almost two weeks before
meetings. Staff is available to answer any questions regarding agenda items. She stated the budget
amendment transfer in the amount of $148,170 with $75k from Library wages and $73,170 from
Police wages. She stated if there are any changes there are other sources where funds are available. 

10 Adjournment



There being no further business to consider, upon proper motion, the meeting adjourned at 8:33 p.m.

                                                                                    (signed) ______________________________________
                                                                                                  Judy Meyers, CMC, City Clerk

Approved: ____________________ (date)

Initialed:    ____________________




































































































































































	Meeting Minutes

